
 
 MEETING NOTICE AND AGENDA 

 
Name of Organization: Public Employees’ Benefits Program 

Date and Time of Meeting: September 28, 2023 9:00 a.m. 

Place of Meeting: 

Video Conferencing: 

3427 Goni Rd Ste. 117 Carson City, NV 89706 

This meeting will be available by means of a remote technology 
system pursuant to NRS 241.023 using video- and tele-conference. 
Instructions for both options are below. This meeting can be 
viewed live over the Internet on the PEBP YouTube channel at  
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=uIl0-_jRGUM 

To submit written public comment, please upload your document to the Public Comment Upload 
Form located under Contact Us on the PEBP website, pebp.state.nv.us, no later than two business days 
prior to the meeting. 
 
To listen to and view the PEBP Board Meeting please click on the YouTube Link located in “Place of 
Meeting” field above. 
 
There are two agenda items designated for public comment. If you wish to provide verbal public 
comment during those agenda items, please follow the instructions below: 
 
Option #1 Join the webinar as an attendee https://us06web.zoom.us/j/86280181729 
 

This link is only for those who want to make public comment. If you are just listening 
to the webinar, please use the YouTube Link located in the “Place of Meeting” field 
above. 

 
Option #2 Dial: (669) 900-6833. When prompted to provide your Meeting ID, please enter: 862 

8018 1729 then press #. When prompted for a Participant ID, please enter #. 
 
Participants that call in will be muted until it is time for public comment. A moderator will then 
unmute callers one at a time for public comment. 
 
To resolve any issues related to dialing in to provide public comment for this meeting, please email 
jcrane@peb.nv.gov 
 
Meeting materials can be accessed here: https://pebp.state.nv.us/meetings-events/board- meetings/  

https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=uIl0-_jRGUM
https://app.smartsheet.com/b/form/dd4d78f0ba364b7e85b655a7153f591b
https://app.smartsheet.com/b/form/dd4d78f0ba364b7e85b655a7153f591b
https://pebp.state.nv.us/contact-us/
https://pebp.state.nv.us/
https://us06web.zoom.us/j/86280181729
https://nv.sharepoint.com/sites/PEBP-Executive/Shared%20Documents/General/Executive/Board%20Meetings/Board%20Meetings%20-%20Future/jcrane@peb.nv.gov
https://pebp.state.nv.us/meetings-events/board-meetings/
https://pebp.state.nv.us/meetings-events/board-meetings/


Public Employees’ Benefits Program Board  Agenda 
September 28, 2023 Page 2 
 

AGENDA 
 
1. Open Meeting; Roll Call 
 
2. Public Comment 

Public comment will be taken during this agenda item. No action may be taken on any matter raised 
under this item unless the matter is included on a future agenda as an item on which action may be 
taken. Public comments to the Board will be taken under advisement but will not be answered during 
the meeting. Comments may be limited to three minutes per person at the discretion of the chairperson. 
Additional three-minute comment periods may be allowed on individual agenda items at the discretion 
of the chairperson. These additional comment periods shall be limited to comments relevant to the 
agenda item under consideration by the Board. The total time allotted to public comment may be limited 
to one hour at the discretion of the chairperson. As noted above, members of the public may make 
public comment by using the call-in number provided above. Persons unable to attend the meeting by 
telephone and persons whose comments may extend past the three-minute time limit may submit their 
public comment in writing by uploading your document to the Public Comment Upload Form located 
under Contact Us on the PEBP website, https://pebp.state.nv.us, no later than two business days prior 
to the meeting.. Persons making public comment need to state and spell their name for the record at 
the beginning of their testimony. 

 
3. PEBP Board disclosures for applicable Board meeting agenda items (Radhika Kunnel, Deputy Attorney 

General) (Information/Discussion) 
 

4. Discussion regarding the recruitment process for a new permanent Executive Officer of PEBP. 
Recruitment open through September 28, 2023. (Jack Robb, Board Chair ) (Information/Discussion) 

 
5. Applicant interview for position of the Executive Officer of PEBP (Information/Discussion) 

5.1 Applicant to be interviewed (approximately one hour per interview) 
• Celestena Glover 

 
6. Discussion and possible action regarding appointment (from the 1 above named applicant) of the 

Executive Officer of PEBP, subject to the Governor’s approval, per NRS 287.0424(1) (Jack Robb, 
Board Chair) (For Possible Action) 
 

7. Consent Agenda (Jack Robb, Board Chair) (All Items for Possible Action) 

Consent items will be considered together and acted on in one motion unless an item is removed to be 
considered separately by the Board. 

7.1 Approval of Action Minutes from the July 27, 2023 PEBP Board Meeting 

7.2 Receipt of quarterly staff reports for the period ending June 30, 2023:  

7.2.1 Budget Report 

7.3 Receipt of quarterly vendor reports for the period ending June 30, 2023:  

7.3.1 Segal – Estimate of IBNR as of June 30, 2023 

7.3.2 Sierra Healthcare Options – Utilization and Large Case Management 
 

https://app.smartsheet.com/b/form/dd4d78f0ba364b7e85b655a7153f591b
https://pebp.state.nv.us/contact-us/
https://pebp.state.nv.us/


Public Employees’ Benefits Program Board  Agenda 
September 28, 2023 Page 3 
 

7.3.3 WTW’s Individual Marketplace Enrollment and Performance Report 

7.3.4 Doctor on Demand Engagement Report through August 2023 

7.3.5 Fiscal Year 2023 Other Post-Employment Benefits (OPEB) valuation 
prepared by Segal in conformance with the Governmental Accounting 
Standards Board (GASB) requirements. 

 

8. Executive Officer Report (Celestena Glover, Interim Executive Officer) (Information/Discussion) 
 

9. Discussion and possible direction from the Board to staff on potential program design changes for Plan 
Year 2025 (July 1, 2024 to June 30, 2025) for which the Board requests additional information and 
costs to be presented at the November 16, 2023 meeting (Celestena Glover, Interim Executive Officer) 
(For Possible Action) 

 

10. Presentation and possible action on the status and approval of new PEBP contracts, contract 
amendments and solicitations (Michelle Weyland, Chief Financial Officer) (Information/Discussion) 

10.1 Contract Overview 

10.2 New Contracts 

10.3 Contract Amendments 

10.3.1 Express Scripts 

10.4 Contract Solicitations 

10.5 Status of Current Solicitations 

 

11. Public Comment 

Public comment will be taken during this agenda item. Comments may be limited to three minutes per 
person at the discretion of the chairperson. Persons making public comment need to state and spell their 
name for the record at the beginning of their testimony. 

 

12. Adjournment 
 
  



Public Employees’ Benefits Program Board  Agenda 
September 28, 2023 Page 4 
 

 
The supporting material to this agenda, also known as the Board Packet, is available, at no charge, on the 
PEBP website at www.pebp.state.nv.us/meetings-events/board-/meetings (under the Board Meeting date 
referenced above). Contact Jessica Crane at PEBP, 3427 Goni Rd, Suite 109, Carson City, NV 89706 
(775) 684-7016 or (800) 326-5496 

An item raised during a report or public comment may be discussed but may not be deliberated or acted 
upon unless it is on the agenda as an action item. 

All times are approximate. The Board reserves the right to take items in a different order or to combine 
two or more agenda items for consideration to accomplish business in the most efficient manner. The 
Board may remove an item from the agenda or delay discussion relating to an item on the agenda at any 
time. 

We are pleased to make reasonable efforts to assist and accommodate persons with physical disabilities 
who wish to participate in the meeting. If special arrangements for the meeting are necessary, please 
notify the PEBP in writing, at 3427 Goni Rd, Suite 109, Carson City, NV 89706, or call Jessica Crane at 
(775) 684-7016 or (800) 326-5496, as soon as possible so that reasonable efforts can be made to 
accommodate the request. 

Copies of both the PEBP Meeting Action Minutes and Meeting Transcripts, if such transcripts are 
prepared, are available for inspection, at no charge, at the PEBP Office, 3427 Goni Rd, Suite 109, Carson 
City, NV 89706 or on the PEBP website at www.pebp.state.nv.us. For additional information, contact 
Jessica Crane at (775) 684-7016 or (800) 326-5496. 

Notice of this meeting was posted on or before 9:00 a.m. on the third working day before the meeting on 
the PEBP website at www.pebp.state.nv.us, at the office of the public body and to the public notice 
website for meetings at https://notice.nv.gov. In addition, the agenda was mailed to groups and 
individuals as requested. 

 

http://www.pebp.state.nv.us/meetings-events/board-/meetings
http://www.pebp.state.nv.us/
http://www.pebp.state.nv.us/
https://notice.nv.gov/


 
1. 

1. Open Meeting; Roll Call 



2. 
2. Public Comment  



3. 
3. PEBP Board disclosures for applicable 

Board meeting agenda items. (Radhika 
Kunnel, Deputy Attorney General) 
(Information/Discussion) 

 



4. 
 

4.  Discussion regarding the recruitment 
process for a new permanent Executive 
Officer of PEBP. Recruitment open 
through September 28, 2023.            
(Jack Robb, Board Chair) 
(Information/Discussion) 

      
   



5. 
5. Applicant interview for position of the 

Executive Officer of PEBP. 
(Information/Discussion) 

 

 5. 1 Applicant to be interviewed    
(Approximately one hour per interview) 

• Celestena Glover 
 



5.1 
 

5.  Applicant interview for position of the 
Executive Officer of PEBP. 
(Information/Discussion) 

 
5.1 Applicant to be interviewed       

(Approximately one hour per interview) 
• Celestena Glover 

 



















6. 
6. Discussion and possible action 

regarding appointment (from the 1 
above named applicant) of the 
Executive Officer of PEBP, subject to 
the Governor’s approval, per NRS 
287.0424(1) (Jack Robb, Board Chair) 
(For Possible Action) 

 



7. 
7.  Consent Agenda (Jack Robb, Board Chair) 

(All items for possible action) 
 

 7.1 Approval of Action Minutes from the July 27, 2023 PEBP Board Meeting 

 7.2 Receipt of quarterly staff reports for the period ending June 30, 2023:  

          7.2.1 Budget Report 

 7.3 Receipt of quarterly vendor reports for the period ending June 30, 2023:  

 7.3.1 Segal – Estimate of IBNR as of June 30, 2023 

           7.3.2 Sierra Healthcare Options – Utilization and Large Case                                                                                                                                                                                                                                      
Management 

 7.3.3 WTW’s Individual Marketplace Enrollment and Performance 
Report 

      7.3.4          Doctor on Demand Engagement Report through August 2023 

7.3.5 Fiscal Year 2023 Other Post-Employment Benefits 
(OPEB) valuation prepared by Segal in conformance with 
the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) 
requirements. 

   

 

  



7.1 
 

7.  Consent Agenda (Jack Robb, Board Chair) 
(All Items for Possible Action) 

 
     7.1 Approval of Action Minutes from the 

July 27, 2023 PEBP Board Meeting 
 



STATE OF NEVADA 
PUBLIC EMPLOYEES’ BENEFITS PROGRAM 

BOARD MEETING 
 

3427 Goni Rd Ste. 117 
Carson City, NV 89706 

Video/Telephonic Open Meeting 
Carson City 

 
 

ACTION MINUTES (Subject to Board Approval) 
July 27, 2023 

MEMBERS PRESENT: 
               Mr. Jack Robb, Board Chair 

                                                Mr. Jim Barnes, Vice Chair    
                                                Ms. Leslie Bittleston, Member  
                                                Ms. Janell Woodward, Member   
                                                Ms. April Caughron, Member 
                                                Ms. Bepsy Strasburg, Member 
MEMBERS PRESENT  
VIA TELECONFERENCE: 

Dr. Jennifer McClendon, Member 
Ms. Michelle Kelley, Member 

 
MEMBERS EXCUSED:      Ms. Betsy Aiello, Member 
 
 
 
FOR THE BOARD:              Ms. Radhika Kunnel, Deputy Attorney General 
 
FOR STAFF:                          
                                                 Ms. Celestena Glover, Interim Executive Officer 

                                             Mr. Nik Proper, Operations Officer 
                                                 Ms. Michelle Weyland, Chief Financial Officer 
                                                 Mr. Tim Lindley, Quality Control Officer 
                                                 Ms. Jessica Crane, Executive Assistant 
 
 
OTHER 
PRESENTERS:   Joni Amato – Claim Technologies, Inc 
     Helmut Braun – UMR 
     Darren Ashby – HealthSCOPE Benefits 
 
    



Public Employees’ Benefits Program Board 
July 27, 2023 Action Minutes – Page 2 

 

 
 
 
1. Open Meeting; Roll Call 

 
• Board Chair Robb opened the meeting at 9:00 a.m. 

 

2. Public Comment 

• Doug Unger – Nevada Faculty Alliance 

• Kent Ervin – Nevada Faculty Alliance 

• Sharon Simington 
 

3. PEBP Board disclosures for applicable Board meeting agenda items. (Radhika Kunnel, Deputy 
Attorney General) (Information/Discussion) 

 
4. Consent Agenda (Jack Robb, Board Chair) (All Items for Possible Action) 

Consent items will be considered together and acted on in one motion unless an item is removed 
to be considered separately by the Board. 

4.1 Approval of Action Minutes from the May 25, 2023 PEBP Board Meeting 
4.2 Receipt of quarterly staff reports for the period ending March 31, 2023: 

4.2.1 Budget Report 

4.2.2 Utilization Report 

4.3 Receipt of quarterly vendor reports for the period ending March 31, 2023: 

4.3.1 UMR – Obesity Care Management 

4.3.2 UMR – Diabetes Care Management 

4.3.3 Sierra Healthcare Options– Utilization and Large Case Management 

4.3.4 UnitedHealthcare – Basic Life Insurance 

4.3.5 Willis Towers Watson’s Individual Marketplace Enrollment and 
Performance Report 

4.3.6 Sierra Healthcare Options and UnitedHealthcare Plus Network 

4.3.7 HealthPlan of Nevada, Inc. – Southern Nevada HMO 

4.3.8 Doctor on Demand Report through May 2023 



Public Employees’ Benefits Program Board 
July 27, 2023 Action Minutes – Page 3 

 

 
4.4 Fiscal Year 2023 Other Post-Employment Benefits (OPEB) valuation prepared 

by Segal in conformance with the Governmental Accounting Standards Board 
(GASB) requirements. 

 
BOARD ACTION ON ITEM 4 
MOTION:  Motion to approve all the items and reports on the consent agenda 
BY:                 Member April Caughron 
SECOND:  Member Leslie Bittleston 
VOTE:   Unanimous; The motion carried 

 
5. Discussion regarding the status of the recruitment and permanent appointment of the PEBP 

Executive Officer (Jack Robb, Board Chair) (Information/Discussion) 
  

6. Election of Board Vice-Chair pursuant to Nevada Administrative Code (NAC) 287.172. Eligible 
candidates are April Caughron, Betsy Aiello, Michelle Kelley, Jim Barnes, Leslie Bittleston, Janell 
Woodward and Jennifer McClendon (Jack Robb, Board Chair) (For Possible Action) 
 

BOARD ACTION ON ITEM 6 
MOTION:  Motion to approve Michelle Kelley as Vice Chair 
BY:                 Member April Caughron 
SECOND:  Member Leslie Bittleston 
VOTE:   Unanimous; The motion carried 
 
7. Executive Officer Report (Celestena Glover, Interim Executive Officer) (Information/Discussion) 
8. Legislative Tracking Report. Discussion regarding legislation passed during the 82nd Legislative 

Session, 2023 (Celestena Glover, Interim Executive Officer) (Information/Discussion) 
9. Discussion and acceptance of Claim Technologies Incorporated audit findings for State of Nevada 

Public Employees’ Benefits Program Plans administered by UMR Benefits for the period of     
January 1, 2023 – March 31, 2023 (Celestena Glover, Interim Executive Officer) (For Possible 
Action) 
 

BOARD ACTION ON ITEM 9 
MOTION:  Motion to accept audit and collect penalties as indicated by CTI 
BY:                 Member Michelle Kelley 
SECOND:  Member Leslie Bittleston  
VOTE:   Unanimous; The motion carried 
 
10.  Presentation and possible action on the status and approval of PEBP contracts, contract 

amendments and solicitations (Michelle Weyland, Chief Financial Officer) (Information/Discussion) 

10.1 Contract Overview 

10.2 New Contracts 

10.3 Contract Amendments 

10.4 Contract Solicitations 

10.5 Status of Current Solicitations



Public Employees’ Benefits Program Board 
July 27, 2023 Action Minutes – Page 4 

 

 

11.  Public Comment 
 

• Terry Laird – RPEN 

• Kent Ervin – Nevada Faculty Alliance 

• Doug Unger – Nevada Faculty Alliance    
 

12. Adjournment 

• Board Chair Robb adjourned the meeting at 10:33 a.m. 



7.2 
 

7.  Consent Agenda (Jack Robb, Board Chair) 
(All Items for Possible Action) 

      
  7.1   Approval of Action Minutes from the July 

27, 2023 PEBP Board Meetings 
  7.2   Receipt of quarterly staff reports for the 

period ending June 30, 2023  
 

 



7.2.1 
 

7.  Consent Agenda (Jack Robb, Board Chair) 
(All Items for Possible Action) 

     
  7.2 Receipt of quarterly staff reports for the 

period ending June 30, 2023:  
   7.2.1  Budget Report 

         
   



Page 1 of 3 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM 
X Action Item 
  
 Information Only 

 
Date:       
  

September 28, 2023 

Item Number: VII.II.I 

Title: Chief Financial Officer Budget Report 

 
Summary 
 
This report addresses the Operational Budget for the year ending June 30, 2023 to include: 
 

1. Budget Status  
2. Budget Totals  
3. Claims Summary 

 
Budget Account 1338 – Operational Budget – Shown below is a summary of the operational 
budget account status for the year ending June 30, 2023, with comparisons to Fiscal Year 2022.  
The budget status is reported on a cash basis and does not include incurred expenses and income 
owed to the fund. 
 
The budget status report reflects actual income of $387.9 million for the year ending June 30, 2023, 
compared to $374.9 million Fiscal Year 2022, or an increase of 3.4%.  Total expenses for the 
period have increased by $33.7 million or 8% for the same period.   
 
The budget status report shows Realized Funding Available (cash) at $115.4 This compares to 
$146.4 million for last year. The table below reflects the actual revenue and expenditures for the 
period.    
 

 
 

 
 
 

STATE OF NEVADA 
PUBLIC EMPLOYEES’ BENEFITS PROGRAM 

3427 Goni Road, Suite 109, Carson City, NV 89706 
 Telephone 775-684-7000 | 702-486-3100 | 1-800-326-5496 

www.pebp.state.nv.us 
JOE LOMBARDO 

Governor 
JACK ROBB 

Board Chair 

CELESTENA GLOVER 
Interim Executive Officer 



Page 2 of 3 
 

 
 
 

 
 
Current Budget Projections 
 
The following table represents the budget total as of June 30, 2023. The total income was less than 
budgeted by 3.4% ($542.7 million vs $561.7 million), total expenditures were less than budgeted 
by 0.9% ($422 million vs $425.9 million); total reserves are less than budgeted by 11.1% ($120.7 
million vs $135.8 million).     
 
State Subsidies are less than the budgeted amount by $22.8 million (7.7%), Non-State Subsidies 
are more than budgeted by $1.0 million (5.0%), and Premium Income is less than budgeted by 
$11.5 million (15.5%). This overall decrease in budgeted revenue is due in part to a planned 1-
month employee premium holiday in October 2022 and a reduction in State Subsidies and 
participant premiums as a result of average enrollment as compared to budgeted enrollment and a 
change in the mix of plan tiers. The mix of participants is as follows: 
 

• 1.60% fewer state actives,  
• 2.54% fewer state non-Medicare retirees,  
• Unchanged non-state actives,  
• 1.04% fewer non-state, non-Medicare retirees 
• 2.54% fewer state Medicare retirees, and  
• 2.35% fewer non-state Medicare retirees 

 

Actual as of 
8/31/2023 Work Program  Percent 

Actual as of 
8/31/2022

Fiscal Year 
2022 Close  Percent 

Beginning Cash     148,854,786     148,854,786 100%    159,011,280    159,011,280 100%

Premium Income     357,314,410     390,499,657 92%    348,068,945    348,069,497 100%
All Other Income       30,538,969       16,362,322 187%      26,868,145      32,877,594 82%

Total Income     387,853,378     406,861,979 95%    374,937,089    380,947,090 98%

Personnel Services         2,320,130         2,801,673 83%        2,382,790        2,382,790 100%
Operating - Other than Personnel         3,400,154         3,465,689 98%        2,919,211        2,919,211 100%
Insurance Program Expenses     415,155,444     409,483,969 101%    381,974,652    385,500,378 99%
All Other Expenses            400,119            424,234 94%           301,205           301,205 100%

Total Expenses     421,275,847     416,175,565 101%    387,577,858    391,103,584 99%

Change in Cash      (33,422,468)        (9,313,586)    (12,640,769)    (10,156,494)

REALIZED FUNDING AVAILABLE     115,432,318     139,541,200 83%    146,370,511    148,854,786 98%

Incurred But Not Reported Liability      (51,030,000)      (51,030,000)    (52,286,000)    (52,286,000)
Catastrophic Reserve      (38,426,000)      (38,426,000)    (34,875,000)    (34,875,000)
HRA Reserve      (22,800,889)      (22,800,889)    (25,056,050)    (25,056,050)

NET REALIZED FUNDING 
AVAILABLE         3,175,429       27,284,311      34,153,461      36,637,736 

 FISCAL YEAR 2022  FISCAL YEAR 2023 

Operational Budget 1338



Page 3 of 3 
 

 
 
 
Expenses for Fiscal Year 2023 are $3.9 million less than budgeted when changes to reserves are 
excluded. Operating expenses are less than budgeted by $0.6 million (7.7%). Employee and 
Retiree insurances costs are less than budgeted by $3.3 million (0.8%) when taken in total (see 
table above for specific information).  
 
PEBP ended FY 2023 with $120.7 million of cash on hand to balance forward to FY 2024. The 
FY 2024 budget was built with a balance forward amount of $144.8 million.  PEBP has made the 
necessary adjustments to the reserve category authority for FY 2024. Once all the adjustments are 
approved through the state budget process, PEBP expects the final differential cash to be fully 
exhausted at the beginning of FY 2024. 
 
Recommendations 
 
None. 

Description Budget Actual 8/31/23 Projected Difference
Carryforward 148,854,786 148,854,786 148,854,786 0 0.0%
State Subsidies 295,515,312 272,748,396 272,748,396 (22,766,916) -7.7%
Non-State Subsidies 20,784,265 21,830,987 21,830,987 1,046,722 5.0%
Premium 74,200,080 62,735,027 62,735,027 (11,465,053) -15.5%
COVID Funds 32,525 29,387 29,387 (3,138) 86.8%
Appropriations 6,009,449 6,009,449 6,009,449 0 -3.4%
All Other 16,329,797 30,509,582 30,509,582 14,179,785 86.8%
Total 561,726,214 542,717,613 542,717,613 (19,008,601) -3.4%

Description Budget Actual 8/31/23 Projected Difference
Operating 7,418,926 6,847,733 6,847,733 571,193 7.7%

State Insurance Costs 367,006,132 366,101,012 366,101,012 905,120 0.2%
Non-State Insurance Costs 11,952,082 10,169,090 10,169,090 1,782,992 14.9%

Medicare Retiree Insurance Costs
39,523,233 38,885,343 38,885,343 637,890 1.6%

Total Insurance Costs 418,481,447 415,155,444 415,155,444 3,326,003 0.8%
Total Expenses 425,900,373 422,003,177 422,003,177 3,897,196 0.9%

Restricted Reserves 112,256,889 112,256,889 112,256,889 0 0.0%
Differential Cash Available 23,568,952 8,457,548 8,457,548 15,111,404 64.1%
Total Reserves 135,825,841 120,714,437 120,714,437 15,111,404 11.1%

Total of Expenses and Reserves 561,726,214 542,717,613 542,717,613 19,008,600 3.4%

Budgeted and Projected Income (Budget Account 1338)

Budgeted and Projected Expenses (Budget Account 1338)



7.3 
 

7.  Consent Agenda (Jack Robb, Board Chair) 
(All Items for Possible Action) 

 
     7.3 Receipt of quarterly vendor reports for the 

period ending June 30, 2023:  
    7.3.1 Segal – Estimate of IBNR as of June 30, 2023 

7.3.2 Sierra Healthcare Options – Utilization and Large 
Case Management 

 7.3.3 Willis Towers Watson’s Individual Marketplace 
Enrollment & Performance Report 

7.3.4 Doctor on Demand Engagement Report through 
August 2023 

7.3.5 Fiscal Year 2023 Other Post-Employment Benefits 
(OPEB) valuation prepared by Segal in 
conformance with the Governmental Accounting 
Standards Board (GASB) requirements. 

  



7.3.1 
 

7.  Consent Agenda (Jack Robb, Board Chair) 
(All Items for Possible Action) 

 
     7.3 Receipt of quarterly vendor reports for the 

period ending June 30, 2023:  
   7.3.1 Segal – Estimate of IBNR as of June 

30, 2023 

               



 

Richard Ward, FSA, FCA, MAAA 
West Region Market Director, Public Sector 
T 956.818.6714 
M 619.710.9952 
RWard@Segalco.com 

500 North Brand Boulevard
Suite 1400

Glendale, CA 91203-3338
segalco.com

 

5775610v2/16664.004  
 

 

August 11, 2023 

Michelle Weyland 
Chief Financial Officer 
Public Employees’ Benefits Program 
3427 Goni Road, Suite 109 
Carson City, NV 89706 
 
Re: Estimate of IBNR as of June 30, 2023  

Dear Michelle:  

Segal has completed its evaluation of the State of Nevada Public Employees’ Benefits Program 
(PEBP) liability for claims that were Incurred but Not Reported (IBNR) as of June 30, 2023. The 
reserve is calculated to estimate the outstanding liability for covered services received prior to 
July 1, 2023 and paid after June 30, 2023. Our estimate of incurred but not reported (IBNR) claims 
includes unreported claims, reported but unprocessed claims, and claims processed but unpaid 
by your administrator. Segal has estimated the reserves for the PEBP’s self-insured active & 
retiree medical, prescription drug, and dental plans to be $52,874,000 as of June 30, 2023. This 
is an increase of $2,844,000 or 5.7% from the prior reserve estimate as of June 30, 2022. 

The IBNR estimates by coverage as of June 30, 2023 are shown in the following table. Medical 
and dental IBNR estimates include a 10% catastrophic margin. Prescription drug IBNR estimates 
do not include a margin due to the minimal time between claim adjudication and plan payment. 
Included in the FY2023 Prescription Drug IBNR figures is an estimate of incurred but not paid 
tertiary claims attributable to the SaveOnSP program in the amount of $756,000.  

 
Benefit Plan FY2022 FY2023 

 CDHP 
Premier 
(EPO) 

Copay CDHP 
Premier 
(EPO) 

Copay 

Medical $28,942,000 $9,049,000 $7,830,000 $26,154,000 $10,872,000 $9,932,000 

Prescription Drugs $1,774,000 $811,000 $488,000 $2,023,000 $1,000,000 $1,215,000 

Total Medical IBNR $30,716,000 $9,860,000 $8,318,000 $28,177,000 $11,872,000 $11,147,000 

Medical Expense Margin $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

 Dental Dental  

Dental $1,136,000 $1,678 ,000 
Dental Expense Margin $0 $0 

 Total Total 

Total IBNR $50,030,000 $52,874,000 
Total Expense Margin $0 $0 

Total All Reserves $51,030,000 $52,874,000 

The change in liabilities from the previous reserve estimate can be attributed to the following:  



Michelle Weyland 
August 10, 2023 
Page 2 
 

5775610v2/16664.004  
 

• Overall, enrollment levels decreased by 1.6% in FY2023. Since the implementation of the 
new Copay plan on July 1, 2021, CDHP and Premier (EPO) plan members have been 
migrating to the richer Copay plan.  For FY2023, enrollment in the CDHP and Premier 
(EPO) plans reduced by 16.9% and 14.4%, respectively as a result of migration. The 
Copay plan membership has increased by 71.3% 
 

 CDHP Plan 
Premier 

(EPO) 
Copay Total 

FY2022 33,027 7,463 8,261 48,750 

FY2023 27,430 6,389 14,151 47,970 

Percent Change -16.9% -14.4% +71.3% -1.6% 

Our estimate does not include any amounts for accounts payable due to claims paid by UMR or 
Express Scripts prior to July 1, 2023, that had been recorded on the carrier’s lag report as paid 
on or before June 30, 2023. Furthermore, if your financial statements identify actual amounts 
known to be paid after June 30, 2023 for services that were incurred prior to July 1, 2023 (e.g. 
recorded as an account payable) from the unknown amounts, those known amounts should be 
subtracted from the estimated liability we have provided so that the total amount of known and 
unknown liability remains equal to our estimated IBNR. A breakdown of liabilities by coverage, 
plan, State/Non-State and eligibility status can be found in Exhibits I, II and III. A description of 
our standard calculation methodology, which was employed for our Medical, Prescription Drug, 
and Dental estimates, is also enclosed. 

Our Medical and Dental estimates rely upon claims paid through June 30, 2023, as furnished by 
HealthSCOPE and UMR. Our Prescription Drug estimates rely upon claims paid through June 30, 
2023 as furnished by Express Scripts. We did not audit this data and our review was limited to 
determining that it appears to be reasonable and acceptable for the projection of outstanding 
liabilities under the plan. The estimated number of months of claims covered by the IBNR, prior 
to the 10% margin, is shown below, by plan and coverage.  
 
Benefit Plan FY2022 FY2023 

 CDHP Premier 
(EPO) Copay CDHP Premier 

(EPO) Copay 

Medical 2.6 2.1 2.9 2.7 2.5 1.9 
Prescription 
Drugs 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.7 0.7 
 Dental Dental 
Dental 0.5 0.8 
  Overall   Overall  
Total IBNR 2.0 1.6 2.2 2.1 2.0 1.5 

Catastrophic Reserve 

At the April 29, 2020 Board Meeting, PEBP’s Board elected to reduce the Catastrophic Reserve 
level from 62 days of claims to 50 days of claims. We have estimated the Catastrophic Reserve 



Michelle Weyland 
August 10, 2023 
Page 3 
 

5775610v2/16664.004  
 

to be $41.8 million as of June 30, 2023 for PEBP’s CDHP, Premier (EPO) and Copay plans. This 
is based on the projected total incurred claims for FY2023 ($305,735,000). 

Plan As of 6/30/2022 As of 6/30/2023 

CDHP $22,446,000 $20,198,000 

Premier (EPO) $8,921,000 $9,712,000 

Copay $7,059,000 $11,852,000 

Total $38,426,000 $41,762,000 

Actuarial Certification 

We certify to the best of our knowledge, the data, methods, and assumptions used to develop the 
estimated liability for IBNR claims are reasonable and are calculated in accordance with generally 
accepted and consistently applied actuarial principles. Although our conclusions are based on 
assumptions and methods that are reasonable for this purpose, actual experience can vary from 
our estimate, and this difference may be material. This estimate is intended to measure PEBP’s 
liability for unpaid claims as of June 30, 2023 and it should not be relied upon for any other 
purpose.  

In addition, the Coronavirus (COVID-19) pandemic continues to evolve and may impact the US 
economy and health plan claims projections for most health plan sponsors. As a result, estimates 
of claim expenses could be impacted by emerging events. At this point, it is unclear what the long-
term cost impact will be for health plan sponsors. 

I am a Fellow of the Society of Actuaries, a Fellow of the Conference of Consulting Actuaries, and 
a Member of the American Academy of Actuaries. I meet the Qualification Standards for Actuaries 
Issuing Statements of Opinion in the United States promulgated by the American Academy of 
Actuaries and am qualified to render an opinion with regard to loss reserves, actuarial liabilities, 
and related items. 

 

Sincerely yours, 

 
Richard Ward, FSA, FCA, MAAA 
West Region Market Director, Public Sector 

 

 
 
 
 
 
  



Michelle Weyland 
August 10, 2023 
Page 4 
 

5775610v2/16664.004  
 

Exhibit I 
Medical IBNR Estimate 

 

Plan IBNR Reserves as 
of June 30, 2022 

IBNR Reserves as 
of June 30, 2023 

Change % 
% of Prior 
12 Months 

Paid Claims 
10% Margin 

Total IBNR with 
Margin 

CDHP            
State       
Actives $19,175,000 $17,067,000 -11.0% 21.6% $1,707,000 $18,774,000 

Retirees $6,494,000 $5,645,000 -13.1% 24.7% $565,000 $6,210,000 

Sub-total $25,669,000 $22,712,000 -11.5% 22.3% $2,272,000 $24,984,000 

Non-State       
Actives $9,000 $7,000 -22.2% 21.1% $1,000 $8,000 

Retirees $632,000 $1,057,000 67.2% 24.7% $105,000 $1,162,000 

Sub-total $641,000 $1,064,000 66.0% 24.7% $106,000 $1,170,000 

Plan Total $26,310,000 $23,776,000 -9.6% 22.4% $2,378,000 $26,154,000 

       
EPO             

State       
Actives $6,837,000 $8,492,000 24.2% 21.8% $849,000 $9,341,000 

Retirees $1,244,000 $1,337,000 7.5% 17.9% $134,000 $1,471,000 

Sub-total $8,081,000 $9,829,000 21.6% 21.1% $983,000 $10,812,000 

Non-State       
Actives $1,000 $1,000 0.0% 30.0% $0 $1,000 

Retirees $145,000 $54,000 -62.8% 17.9% $5,000 $59,000 

Sub-total $146,000 $55,000 -62.3% 18.1% $5,000 $60,000 

Plan Total $8,227,000 $9,884,000 20.1% 21.1% $988,000 $10,872,000 

       
Copay             

State       
Actives $5,892,000 $7,430,000 26.1% 14.8% $743,000 $8,173,000 

Retirees $1,152,000 $1,491,000 29.4% 20.1% $150,000 $1,641,000 

Sub-total $7,044,000 $8,921,000 26.6% 15.5% $893,000 $9,814,000 

Non-State       
Actives $7,000 $3,000 -57.1% 16.3% $0 $3,000 

Retirees $68,000 $105,000 54.4% 20.2% $10,000 $115,000 

Sub-total $75,000 $108,000 44.0% 20.0% $10,000 $118,000 

Plan Total $7,119,000 $9,029,000 26.8% 15.5% $903,000 $9,932,000 

       
Grand Total $41,656,000 $42,689,000 2.5% 20.2% $4,269,000 $46,958,000 

   



Michelle Weyland 
August 10, 2023 
Page 5 
 

5775610v2/16664.004  
 

 
Exhibit II 

Prescription Drug IBNR Estimate 

 

Plan 

IBNR 
Reserves as 
of June 30, 

2022 

IBNR 
Reserves as 
of June 30, 

2023 

Change % 
% of Prior 12 
Months Paid 

Claims 
0% Margin 

Total IBNR 
with Margin 

              

CDHP $1,774,000 $2,023,000 14.0% 5.94% $0 $2,023,000 

EPO $811,000 $1,000,000 23.3% 5.94% $0 $1,000,000 

Copay $488,000 $1,215,000 149.0% 5.94% $0 $1,215,000 

   
 

   
Grand Total $3,073,000 $4,238,000 37.9% 5.94% $0 $4,238,000 

 
 Estimates do not reflect the impact of any pharmaceutical manufacturer rebates due to PEBP resulting from the 

utilization of brand drugs. 
 Estimates for PY2023 include an estimate of SaveOnSP tertiary claims IBNR of $755,562. 

 

 
Exhibit III 

Dental IBNR Estimate 

 

Plan 

IBNR 
Reserves as 
of June 30, 

2022 

IBNR 
Reserves as 
of June 30, 

2023 

Change % 
% of Prior 
12 Months 

Paid Claims 
10% Margin 

Total IBNR 
with Margin 

             

State       
Actives $683,000 $970,000 42.0% 6.4% $97,000 $1,067,000 

Retirees $256,000 $415,000 62.1% 7.1% $41,000 $456,000 

Sub-total $939,000 $1,385,000 47.5% 6.6% $138,000 $1,523,000 

Non-State       

Actives $0 $0 0.0% 0.0% $0 $0 

Retirees $94,000 $141,000 50.0% 7.2% $14,000 $155,000 

Sub-total $94,000 $141,000 50.0% 7.1% $14,000 $155,000 

Grand Total $1,033,000 $1,526,000 47.7% 6.62% $152,000 $1,678,000 

 
  



Michelle Weyland 
August 10, 2023 
Page 6 
 

5775610v2/16664.004  
 

 

Exhibit IV 
FY2023 Average Employee Count 

 

Group 
Medical 

Dental 
CDHP 

Premier 
(EPO) 

Copay 

State         
Active 13,206 2,874 6,584 25,815 
Retiree 2,717 511 644 10,007 
Sub-total 15,922 3,385 7,228 35,822 

Non-State       
Active 3 2 1 6 
Retiree 368 61 27 3,977 
Sub-total 371 63 28 3,983 

Total 16,293 3,448 7,255 39,805 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



Michelle Weyland 
August 10, 2023 
Page 7 
 

5775610v2/16664.004  
 

Data, Assumptions, and Methodology 

We have relied upon claims and membership data provided by HealthSCOPE, Express Scripts 
and LifeWorks, with payments through June 30, 2023. We accepted this information without audit 
and have relied upon the source for the accuracy of the data; however, we did review the 
information for reasonableness and consistency. On the basis of this review, we believe the data 
and information provided to be sufficiently complete and accurate, and that it is appropriate for 
the purposes intended. 

Assumptions and Methodology – Segal IBNR reserve model 
 
The Segal IBNR model utilizes detailed monthly claims data that shows the amount of monthly 
claim dollars paid in each month of the reserve determination period relative to the month 
services were incurred. We project total Incurred Claims by month and then subtract known 
Paid Claim runoff by incurred month to calculate the completion factors for the estimated IBNR 
reserves. This method results in highly accurate estimates of IBNR reserves in large stable 
environments. 
 
Calculation Methodology 
 
Consistent with best practices in the industry, Segal blends two distinct methods to estimate 
monthly incurred claims:  
 
1. Claims Lag Method - The first method estimates incurred claims by determining the payment 

patterns for each month of incurred claims. For example, for claims incurred in September 
2021, we will review claims paid in September, October, November, and each succeeding 
month through June 2022. We review each month’s payment patterns and utilize these 
cashflows to estimate the remaining claims to be paid that have been incurred for each 
month. 

2. Claims Projection Method – The second method develops a projected per capita total 
incurred claims estimate for each month. This estimate is based on the expected total 
incurred claims for prior months, trended forward and adjusted for plan changes. The per 
capita incurred claims are multiplied by that month’s enrollment and the total paid claims 
reported to date are subtracted to determine the expected incurred but not paid for that 
month. 

The first method (Claims Lag Method) generally provides better estimates for more mature 
months, meaning months with more paid claims data. The second method (Claims Projection 
Method) generally provides better estimates for more recent months, where there is less paid 
data available. Our approach develops an estimate for each method for each month and blends 
the two based on the relative credibility, resulting the Claims Lag Method estimates receiving 
more weight for older months and the Claims Projection Method estimates receiving more 
weight for recent months.  
 



7.3.2 
 

7.  Consent Agenda (Jack Robb, Board Chair) 
(All Items for Possible Action) 

 
     7.3 Receipt of quarterly vendor reports for the 

period ending June 30, 2023:  
   7.3.1 Segal – Estimate of IBNR as of 

June 30, 2023 
              7.3.2  Sierra Healthcare Options – 

Utilization and Large Case 
Management 



SHO-PUBLIC EMPLOYEES BENEFIT
PROGRAM2023 Performance Review

UnitedHealthcare - Confidential Page 1 of 1009/12/2023

Excutive Summary

Metrics Apr-23 May-23 Jun-23 Average

Enrollment 48,272 48,576 48,519 48,456

H Inp All

Month

Inpatient All - LTACH, AIR, SNF, and OOA

Apr-23 May-23 Jun-23 Total Average

Total Discharges

Total Discharges LOS

Average LOS

156 150 144 450 150

1,011 616 902 2,529 843

6.5 4.1 6.3 5.6 5.6

H Inp Acu

Month

Inpatient Hospital Acute Only

Apr-23 May-23 Jun-23 Total Average

Total Discharges

Total Discharges LOS

Average LOS

106 91 93 290 97

524 380 478 1,382 461

4.9 4.2 5.1 4.8 4.8

 Out of Area, Hopital Rehabilitation and Skilled Nursing are excluded from this calculation.

H Bdy Fac Typ

Metrics

Facility Type

Beddays by Facility Type

Beddays

Apr-23 May-23 Jun-23 Total Average

Hospital

Hospital Rehabilitation

Skilled Nursing

Out of Area

657 381 478 1,516 505

0 11 7 18 9

55 56 28 139 46

432 169 391 992 331

Metrics

Facility Type

Beddays per K

Apr-23 May-23 Jun-23 Total

Hospital

Hospital Rehabilitation

Skilled Nursing

Out of Area

163.3 94.1 118.2 125.1

0.0 2.7 1.7 1.5

13.7 13.8 6.9 11.5

107.4 41.7 96.7 81.9

H Adm Fac Typ

Metrics

Facility Type

Admits by Facility Type

Admits

Apr-23 May-23 Jun-23 Total Average

Hospital

Hospital Rehabilitation

Skilled Nursing

Out of Area

106 93 95 294 98

0 2 1 3 2

4 3 2 9 3

52 49 53 154 51



SHO-PUBLIC EMPLOYEES BENEFIT
PROGRAM2023 Performance Review

UnitedHealthcare - Confidential Page 2 of 1009/12/2023

Excutive Summary

Metrics

Facility Type

Admits per K

Apr-23 May-23 Jun-23 Total

Hospital

Hospital Rehabilitation

Skilled Nursing

Out of Area

26.4 23.0 23.5 24.3

0.0 0.5 0.2 0.2

1.0 0.7 0.5 0.7

12.9 12.1 13.1 12.7

H Re Fac Typ

Metrics

Facility Type

Readmits by Facility Type

Readmits

Apr-23 May-23 Jun-23 Total Average

Hospital

Hospital Rehabilitation

Skilled Nursing

Out of Area

8 10 8 26 9

0 0 0 0 0

0 0 0 0 0

2 4 3 9 3

Facility Type

H ALOS Fac

Metrics

Facility Name

Average Length of Stay by Facility

Average LOS

Apr-23 May-23 Jun-23 Total

Hospital

Hospital Rehabilitation

Skilled Nursing

CENTENNIAL HILLS HOSPITAL MEDICAL
CENTER

HENDERSON HOSPITAL

MOUNTAIN VIEW HOSPITAL

NORTH VISTA HOSPITAL

RENOWN REGIONAL MEDICAL CENTER

SOUTHERN HILLS HOSPITAL

SPRING VALLEY HOSPITAL

ST ROSE DOMINICAN HOSPITAL SAN
MARTIN CAMPUS

ST ROSE DOMINICAN HOSPITAL SIENA
CAMPUS

SUMMERLIN HOSPITAL MEDICAL CTR

SUNRISE HOSPITAL

UNIVERSITY MEDICAL CENTER SO NV

VALLEY HOSPITAL MEDICAL CTR

Total

ENCOMPASS HEALTH HOSPITAL OF
HENDERSON

ENCOMPASS HEALTH REHAB OF LAS
VEGAS

PAM SPECIALTY HOSPITAL OF LAS
VEGAS

Total

SAGE CREEK POST ACUTE

SANDSTONE SPRING VALLEY LLC

3.3 3.0 10.5 4.1

1.7 2.5 13.0 5.1

2.6 11.8 19.7 11.9

0.0 1.0 1.0 1.0

5.3 2.7 4.4 4.3

4.3 1.0 6.7 4.3

3.2 5.2 2.0 3.6

2.0 1.0 2.0 1.6

2.1 7.0 1.0 3.3

5.1 3.8 4.4 4.3

6.2 3.3 4.3 5.2

18.7 8.7 0.8 8.5

3.0 4.0 3.3 3.4

4.9 4.2 5.1 4.8

0.0 4.0 0.0 4.0

0.0 0.0 7.0 7.0

0.0 7.0 0.0 7.0

0.0 5.5 7.0 6.0

2.0 50.0 4.5 15.3

17.7 2.0 0.0 9.8



SHO-PUBLIC EMPLOYEES BENEFIT
PROGRAM2023 Performance Review

UnitedHealthcare - Confidential Page 3 of 1009/12/2023

Excutive Summary

Facility Type

H ALOS Fac

Metrics

Facility Name

Average Length of Stay by Facility

Average LOS

Apr-23 May-23 Jun-23 Total

Skilled Nursing

Out of Area

TRELLIS CENTENNIAL

Total

Out of Area

Total

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

13.8 14.0 14.0 13.9

9.4 3.2 8.1 6.7

9.4 3.2 8.1 6.7

Facility Type

H Bdy Fac

Metrics

Facility Name

Beddays by Facility

Beddays

Apr-23 May-23 Jun-23 Total Average

Hospital

Hospital Rehabilitation

Skilled Nursing

Out of Area

CENTENNIAL HILLS HOSPITAL MEDICAL
CENTER

HENDERSON HOSPITAL

MOUNTAIN VIEW HOSPITAL

NORTH VISTA HOSPITAL

RENOWN REGIONAL MEDICAL CENTER

SOUTHERN HILLS HOSPITAL

SPRING VALLEY HOSPITAL

ST ROSE DOMINICAN HOSPITAL SAN
MARTIN CAMPUS

ST ROSE DOMINICAN HOSPITAL SIENA
CAMPUS

SUMMERLIN HOSPITAL MEDICAL CTR

SUNRISE HOSPITAL

UNIVERSITY MEDICAL CENTER SO NV

VALLEY HOSPITAL MEDICAL CTR

Total

ENCOMPASS HEALTH HOSPITAL OF
HENDERSON

ENCOMPASS HEALTH REHAB OF LAS
VEGAS

PAM SPECIALTY HOSPITAL OF LAS
VEGAS

Total

SAGE CREEK POST ACUTE

SANDSTONE SPRING VALLEY LLC

TRELLIS CENTENNIAL

Total

Out of Area

Total

30 18 21 69 23

5 5 26 36 12

13 59 118 190 63

0 2 1 3 2

400 106 209 715 238

17 2 20 39 13

16 26 8 50 17

4 2 2 8 3

15 49 8 72 24

36 46 35 117 39

62 10 17 89 30

56 52 3 111 37

3 4 10 17 6

657 381 478 1,516 0

0 4 0 4 4

0 0 7 7 7

0 7 0 7 7

0 11 7 18 0

2 50 9 61 20

53 6 0 59 30

0 0 19 19 19

55 56 28 139 0

432 169 391 992 331

432 169 391 992 0



SHO-PUBLIC EMPLOYEES BENEFIT
PROGRAM2023 Performance Review

UnitedHealthcare - Confidential Page 4 of 1009/12/2023

Excutive Summary

Facility Type

H Ad Fac

Metrics

Facility Name

Admits by Facility

Admits

Apr-23 May-23 Jun-23 Total Average

Hospital

Hospital Rehabilitation

Skilled Nursing

Out of Area

CENTENNIAL HILLS HOSPITAL MEDICAL
CENTER

HENDERSON HOSPITAL

MOUNTAIN VIEW HOSPITAL

NORTH VISTA HOSPITAL

RENOWN REGIONAL MEDICAL CENTER

SOUTHERN HILLS HOSPITAL

SPRING VALLEY HOSPITAL

ST ROSE DOMINICAN HOSPITAL SAN
MARTIN CAMPUS

ST ROSE DOMINICAN HOSPITAL SIENA
CAMPUS

SUMMERLIN HOSPITAL MEDICAL CTR

SUNRISE HOSPITAL

UNIVERSITY MEDICAL CENTER SO NV

VALLEY HOSPITAL MEDICAL CTR

Total

ENCOMPASS HEALTH HOSPITAL OF
HENDERSON

ENCOMPASS HEALTH REHAB OF LAS
VEGAS

PAM SPECIALTY HOSPITAL OF LAS
VEGAS

Total

SAGE CREEK POST ACUTE

SANDSTONE SPRING VALLEY LLC

TRELLIS CENTENNIAL

Total

Out of Area

Total

9 6 3 18 6

3 2 3 8 3

5 7 8 20 7

0 2 1 3 2

51 34 54 139 46

5 1 4 10 3

5 5 3 13 4

2 2 1 5 2

5 11 5 21 7

7 13 5 25 8

10 2 4 16 5

3 6 2 11 4

1 2 2 5 2

106 93 95 294 0

0 1 0 1 1

0 0 1 1 1

0 1 0 1 1

0 2 1 3 0

1 2 1 4 1

3 1 0 4 2

0 0 1 1 1

4 3 2 9 0

52 49 53 154 51

52 49 53 154 0

Facility Type

H Re Fac

Metrics

Facility Name

Readmits by Facility

Readmits

Apr-23 May-23 Jun-23 Total Average

Hospital CENTENNIAL HILLS HOSPITAL MEDICAL
CENTER

HENDERSON HOSPITAL

MOUNTAIN VIEW HOSPITAL

NORTH VISTA HOSPITAL

RENOWN REGIONAL MEDICAL CENTER

SOUTHERN HILLS HOSPITAL

0 0 0 0 0

0 0 1 1 0

0 2 1 3 1

0 0 0 0 0

4 5 5 14 5

1 0 0 1 0



SHO-PUBLIC EMPLOYEES BENEFIT
PROGRAM2023 Performance Review

UnitedHealthcare - Confidential Page 5 of 1009/12/2023

Excutive Summary

Facility Type

H Re Fac

Metrics

Facility Name

Readmits by Facility

Readmits

Apr-23 May-23 Jun-23 Total Average

Hospital

Out of Area

SPRING VALLEY HOSPITAL

ST ROSE DOMINICAN HOSPITAL SAN
MARTIN CAMPUS

ST ROSE DOMINICAN HOSPITAL SIENA
CAMPUS

SUMMERLIN HOSPITAL MEDICAL CTR

SUNRISE HOSPITAL

UNIVERSITY MEDICAL CENTER SO NV

VALLEY HOSPITAL MEDICAL CTR

Total

Out of Area

Total

0 0 0 0 0

0 0 0 0 0

0 2 0 2 1

1 1 0 2 1

2 0 1 3 1

0 0 0 0 0

0 0 0 0 0

8 10 8 26 0

2 4 3 9 3

2 4 3 9 0

Facility Type

H Re Fac

Metrics

Facility Name

Readmits by Facility

Readmit Rate

Apr-23 May-23 Jun-23 Total Average

Hospital

Out of Area

CENTENNIAL HILLS HOSPITAL MEDICAL
CENTER

HENDERSON HOSPITAL

MOUNTAIN VIEW HOSPITAL

NORTH VISTA HOSPITAL

RENOWN REGIONAL MEDICAL CENTER

SOUTHERN HILLS HOSPITAL

SPRING VALLEY HOSPITAL

ST ROSE DOMINICAN HOSPITAL SAN
MARTIN CAMPUS

ST ROSE DOMINICAN HOSPITAL SIENA
CAMPUS

SUMMERLIN HOSPITAL MEDICAL CTR

SUNRISE HOSPITAL

UNIVERSITY MEDICAL CENTER SO NV

VALLEY HOSPITAL MEDICAL CTR

Total

Out of Area

Total

0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%

0.0% 0.0% 33.3% 12.5% 12.5%

0.0% 28.6% 12.5% 15.0% 15.0%

0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%

7.8% 14.7% 9.3% 10.1% 10.1%

20.0% 0.0% 0.0% 10.0% 10.0%

0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%

0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%

0.0% 18.2% 0.0% 9.5% 9.5%

14.3% 7.7% 0.0% 8.0% 8.0%

20.0% 0.0% 25.0% 18.8% 18.8%

0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%

0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%

7.5% 10.8% 8.4% 8.8% 0.0%

3.8% 8.2% 5.7% 5.8% 5.8%

3.8% 8.2% 5.7% 5.8% 0.0%



SHO-PUBLIC EMPLOYEES BENEFIT
PROGRAM2023 Performance Review

UnitedHealthcare - Confidential Page 6 of 1009/12/2023

Utilization Summary

H OPCM

Month

Outpatient Case Management

Apr-23 May-23 Jun-23 YTD Average

New Cases

Accepted

Acceptance Rate

Average Duration (closed
only)

156 191 188 535 178

110 134 144 388 129

70.5% 70.2% 76.6% 72.5% 72.5%

7.1 12.0 8.5 9.2 9.2

H Inp CM

Month

Inpatient Case Management

Apr-23 May-23 Jun-23 YTD Average

Open End of Month

Cases opened in the month

Cases closed in the month

Denied Days

Average LOS

NICU Open at End of Month

NICU Cases opened in the
month

NICU Cases closed in the
month

NICU Average Legth of Stay

30 24 34 88 29

162 147 151 460 153

156 150 144 450 150

60 2 7 69 23

6.5 4.1 6.3 5.6 5.6

5 1 2 8 3

6 4 2 12 4

3 7 2 12 4

60.3 7.9 23.5 23.6 23.6

H Auth

Month

Authorizations

Apr-23 May-23 Jun-23 YTD Average

Total services reviewed

Services Approved

Approval Rate

Services Denied

Denied Charges

Denial Rate

2,871 3,227 2,989 9,087 3,029

2,756 3,103 2,892 8,751 2,917

96.0% 96.2% 96.8% 96.3% 96.3%

115 124 97 336 112

$22,177 $41,194 $18,110 $81,481 $27,160

4% 4% 3% 4% 4%

H Den Rsn 1

Metrics

Denial Reason

Denial Reason

Denied

Apr-23 May-23 Jun-23 YTD Average

Not medically necessary 115 124 97 336 112



SHO-PUBLIC EMPLOYEES BENEFIT
PROGRAM2023 Performance Review

UnitedHealthcare - Confidential Page 7 of 1009/12/2023

Utilization Summary
H Den Rsn 1

Metrics

Denial Reason

Denial Reason

Denied

Apr-23 May-23 Jun-23 YTD Average

None 60 2 7 69 23



SHO-PUBLIC EMPLOYEES BENEFIT
PROGRAM2023 Performance Review

UnitedHealthcare - Confidential Page 8 of 1009/12/2023

Utilization Summary

No data returned for this view. This might be because the applied filter excludes all data.

Turn around time is the number of days between the case open date and case close date.

H Stat

Month

Stat

Apr-23 May-23 Jun-23 YTD Average

Stat Request 740 664 713 2,117 706

H Appeals

Month

Appeals

Apr-23 May-23 Jun-23 YTD Average

Appeals 1st Level

Appeals 2nd Level

Appeals 3rd Level

Appeals Overturned

Appeals Upheld

1 4 0 5.00 1.67

0 0 0 0.00 0.00

0 0 0 0.00 0.00

0 1 0 1.00 0.33

2 3 0 5.00 1.67



SHO-PUBLIC EMPLOYEES BENEFIT
PROGRAM2023 Performance Review

UnitedHealthcare - Confidential Page 9 of 1009/12/2023

Utilization Summary

H Rtro

Month

Retro Reviews

Apr-23 May-23 Jun-23 YTD Average

Retros 0 0 0 0 0

No data returned for this view. This might be because the applied filter excludes all data.



SHO-PUBLIC EMPLOYEES BENEFIT
PROGRAM2023 Performance Review

UnitedHealthcare - Confidential Page 10 of 1009/12/2023

Bedday Summary

Month Apr-23 May-23 Jun-23 YTD

Membership

Beddays per K

Admits per K

Average LOS

Readmits per K

Readmit Rate

48,272 48,576 48,519 48,456

233.2 138.6 182.8 184.7

38.5 35.6 35.9 36.7

5.3 3.8 5.3 4.8

2.5 3.5 2.7 2.9

6.5% 9.7% 7.6% 7.9%

Acute only
NOTE:  Per K formula:  Actual number / membership * 12,000

SHO
Month Apr-23 May-23 Jun-23 YTD

Beddays per K

Admits per K

Average LOS

Readmits per K

Readmit Rate

199.6 164.8 171.9 178.7

36.8 35.6 34.1 35.5

5.0 4.6 4.5 4.7

2.6 2.5 2.2 2.4

7.0% 7.1% 6.3% 6.8%

SHL PPO
Month Apr-23 May-23 Jun-23 YTD

Beddays per K

Admits per K

Average LOS

Reamits per K

Readmit Rate

123.4 152.9 154.3 143.5

32.3 36.4 39.7 36.1

4.5 4.8 4.9 4.7

2.3 2.1 3.8 2.7

7.1% 5.7% 9.5% 7.5%

This report includes: Place of service 21 Acute only with a status of "to be discharged" or discharged.



7.3.3 
 

7.  Consent Agenda (Jack Robb, Board Chair) 
(All Items for Possible Action) 

 
     7.3 Receipt of quarterly vendor reports for the 

period ending June 30, 2023:  
   7.3.1 Segal – Estimate of IBNR as of 

June 30, 2023 
              7.3.2  Sierra Healthcare Options – 

Utilization and Large Case 
Management 

  7.3.3   WTW’s Individual Marketplace    
Enrollment and Performance 
Report  

   



wtwco.com

Nevada Public Employees Benefit Program

Quarterly Update –4th Quarter Plan Year 2023

July 21, 2023

WTW’s Individual Marketplace

© 2023 WTW. All rights reserved. Proprietary and Confidential. For WTW and WTW client use only.



wtwco.com

© 2023 WTW. All rights reserved. Proprietary and Confidential. For WTW and WTW client use only.

2

The Public Employees Benefit Program Executive Dashboard
Quarterly Update – 4th Quarter Plan Year 2023

Executive Summary Summary of Retiree Decisions and Costs

Plan Enrollment:
▪ At the end of FY Q4 2023, PEBP’s total enrollment into Medicare policies through 

WTW’s Individual Marketplace decreased to 11,332. Since inception, 119 carriers 

have been selected by PEBP’s retirees with current enrollment in 1,905 different 

plans. 
▪ Medicare Supplement (MS) plan selection remained consistent at 87% of the total 

population with the majority of participants selecting AARP and Anthem BCBS of 
Nevada as their insurer; each carrier holds plans for 6,184 and 1,847 enrollees
respectively. The average monthly premium cost for MS plans remained 
consistent at $146. 

▪ The percentage of Medicare Advantage (MA or MAPD) plans selected remained 
consistent at  13%. Top MA carriers include Aetna with 590 individual plan 
selections and Humana with 281 individual plan selections.  The average monthly 
premium cost to PEBP participants decreased to $10. 

Customer Satisfaction:
▪ In Q4 2023, PEBP participant satisfaction with Enrollment Calls had an average 

satisfaction score result of 4.0 out of 5.0 based on twenty surveys returned. 
▪ For Q4 2023, the average satisfaction score for Service Calls was 4.4 out of 5.0 

based on 211surveys returned. 
▪ The combined average satisfaction score for Enrollment Calls and Service Calls 

was 4.4 out of 5.0 for Q42023.

Health Reimbursement Arrangement:
▪ At the end of Q4 2023 there were 13,469 Health Reimbursement Arrangement 

(HRA) accounts for PEBP participants.
▪ There were 97,996 claims processed in Q4, with 88% being submitted via Auto-

Reimbursement, meaning that participants did not have to manually submit 
85,828 claims for Premium Reimbursement.  

▪ The total reimbursement amount processed for Q3 was $8,213,025.

Retiree Plan Selection Through 06/30/2023 Previous Qtr.
Total enrolled through individual marketplace 11,332 11,333

Number of carriers** 119 119

Number of plans** 1,905 1,892

Plan Type Selection Through 06/30/2023 Previous Qtr.

Medicare Advantage (MA, MAPD) 1,515 1,505

Medicare Supplement (MS) 9,816 9,838

Plan Type Number Enrolled Average Premium
Medicare Supplement (MS) 9,916 $146

Medicare Advantage (MA,MAPD) 1,515 $0 / $10

Part D drug coverage 6,632 $23

Dental coverage 886 $38

Vision coverage 1,614 $9

** Reflects total carriers and plans that PEBP participants have enrolled in nationwide, since inception. 

87%

13%

Medical Enrollment

MS MA

“The percentage of Medicare Advantage plans 

selected by PEBP’s retiree population is  now 

slightly below the average for WTW’s Book of 

Business. 



wtwco.com
© 2023 WTW. All rights reserved. Proprietary and Confidential. For WTW and WTW client use only.

3

Summary of Retiree Carrier Choice

Top Medicare Supplement Plans Total
AARP 6,184
Anthem BCBS of NV 1,847
Cigna Total Choice 332
Humana 358
United of Omaha 254

Top Medicare Advantage Plans Total
AARP Medicare Advantage 213
Aetna 590
Anthem BCBS 81
Hometown Health Plan 139
Humana 281

Top Medicare Part D (RX) Total
AARP Part D from United Healthcare 1,540

Aetna Medicare Rx (SilverScript) 1,079

Cigna HealthSpring 83

Humana 2,199

WellCare 1,561

Cost Data For MS Plans Cost
Minimum $22
Average $146
Median $140
Maximum $481

Cost Data For MA Plans Cost
Minimum $0
Average $10
Median $0
Maximum $194

Cost Data For Part D  (RX) Cost
Minimum $4
Average $23
Median $16
Maximum $118

63%

19%

3%
4%

3%
8%

Medicare Supplement Carrier Choice

AARP

Anthem BCBS of NV

Cigna Total Choice

Humana

United of Omaha

All others

14%

39%

5%
9%

19%

14%

Medicare Advantage Carrier Choice

AARP Medicare
Advantage
Aetna

Anthem BCBS

Hometown Health Plan

Humana

All others

24%

16%

1%
34%

23%

2%

Part D (RX) Carrier Choice
AARP Part D from United
Healthcare
Aetna Medicare Rx
(SilverScript)
Cigna HealthSpring

Humana

WellCare

All others

The Public Employees Benefit Program Executive Dashboard
Quarterly Update – 4th Quarter Plan Year 2023



wtwco.com

© 2023 WTW. All rights reserved. Proprietary and Confidential. For WTW and WTW client use only.

4

Q3 Enrollment Satisfaction Q3 Service Satisfaction

Customer Service – Voice of the Customer (VoC)

Q3 Enrollment & Service Combined
CSAT 
score Count %

5 160 69%

4 34 15%

3 15 6%

2 10 4%

1 12 5%

231 100%

CSAT 
score Count %

5 15 75%

4 2 10%

3 1 5%

2 1 5%

1 1 5%

20 100%

CSAT 
score Count %

5 145 69%

4 32 15%

3 14 7%

2 9 4%

1 11 5%

211 100%

4.6
4.6

4

4.5

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4

4.3 4.3 4.4 4.4

Q1 Q2 Q3

4.4 4.3 4.4 4.4

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4

Individual Marketplace conducts phone and email surveys of all participant transactions. Each survey contains approximately 12-16 questions. Responses are scanned by IBM 
Mindshare Analytics which expose trends within an hour, alerting Individual Marketplace of issues and allowing for real-time feedback and adjustments

The Public Employees Benefit Program Executive Dashboard
Quarterly Update – 4th Quarter Plan Year 2023



wtwco.com

© 2023 WTW. All rights reserved. Proprietary and Confidential. For WTW and WTW client use only.

5

Customer Service – Issues Log Resolution Health Reimbursement Account (HRA)

Claim Activity for the Qtr. Total

HRA accounts 13,469

Number of payments 50,589

Accounts with no balance 7,925

Claims paid amount $8,213,025

Claims By Source Total

A/R file 85,828

Mail 4,908

Web 4,831

Mobile App 2,429

Each quarter a certain number of participant inquiries are received by both PEBP and WTW that 
require escalation to Individual Marketplace Issues Log. Items on the Issues Log are carefully 
evaluated and continuously monitored by seasoned WTW staff until resolution is reached. The total 
number of inquiries reviewed during Q4-PY23 is 57 and are associated with the following 
categories:

Enrollment Request
32%

Reimbursement
28%

HRA
17%

Enrollment Status
12%

General 
Questions

7%

Carrier Issue
2%

Eligibility Data
2% Enrollment Request

Reimbursement

HRA

Enrollment Status

General Questions

Carrier Issue

Eligibility Data

0

0

1

1

18

7

4

10

0

16

1

0

Automatic Reimbursement

Call Review

Carrier Issue

Eligibility Data

Enrollment Request

Enrollment Status

General Questions

HRA

Mailings/Email

Reimbursement

Update Participant
Information

Website Issues

The Public Employees Benefit Program Executive Dashboard
Quarterly Update – 4th Quarter Plan Year 2023



wtwco.com

© 2023 WTW. All rights reserved. Proprietary and Confidential. For WTW and WTW client use only.

6

Performance Guarantees* 

The Public Employees Benefit Program Executive Dashboard
Quarterly Update – 4th Quarter Plan Year 2023

Category Commitment Outcome PG MET

Claims Turnaround Time ≤ 2 days 0.19 Days Yes

Claim Financial Accuracy  ≥ 98% 99.58% Yes

Reports ≤ 15 business days Met Yes

HRA Web Services ≥ 99% 99.98% Yes

Benefits Administration Customer Service Avg. Speed to Answer

≤ 2 min. in Q1 

≤ 90 sec in Q4 and Q4

≤ 5 minutes in Q4

Note - Quarters listed are based on 
calendar year. 

10 Seconds Yes

Benefits Administration Customer Service Abandonment Rate Annual ≤ 5% Annual Yes

Customer Satisfaction ≥ 80% 90.48% Yes

Disclosure of Subcontractors 100% 100% Yes

Unauthorized Transfer of PEBP Data 100% 100% Yes

*Please note that the performance guarantees are ultimately measured based on the annual audit period.



wtwco.com

© 2023 WTW. All rights reserved. Proprietary and Confidential. For WTW and WTW client use only.

7

Operations Report

The Public Employees Benefit Program Executive Dashboard
Quarterly Update – 2nd Quarter Plan Year 2023

Communications:

Below is information on communications that were mailed or will be coming up. 

▪ Fall “The Groove” Newsletter

▪ “The Groove”, is our digital newsletter communication that is normally sent bi-monthly. The version that will be sent in mid/late September will 
focus on educating participants on Medicare and the upcoming Medicare Open Enrollment Period that is from October 15 – December 7.

▪ HRA Qualification Reminder Notification
▪ This communication reminds retirees that have a funding qualification requirement to contact Via Benefits during Medicare Open Enrollment if 

they want to change plans so they do not negatively impact their HRA qualification. This communication is targeted to mail in mid/late 
September.

▪ Fall Balance Reminder
▪ This communication is mailed to participants who have not had any payment activity in their HRA in the prior 90 days. It is designed to remind 

them of their HRA balance so they can take action and submit new claims for reimbursement from their account. The Balance Reminder is 
targeted to be mailed in mid/late September. 

HRA Available Balance Cap of $8,000:

Effective May 31, 2023, the annual $8,000 HRA Available Balance Cap reduction was processed on accounts with a balance of more then $8,000. Nevada PEBP sent a 
communication related to this Cap to participants with balances of $7,000 or greater as they are expected to be the ones who will potentially be impacted by the Cap this year. The 
goal of the communication was to remind participants to submit claims against their balance to reduce it below the $8,000 threshold so they do not lose any of their HRA balance. 
Once funds are removed because they are over the $8,000 cap, they cannot be added back. This year there we 598 account impacted for adjustment amounts totaling 
~$1.031,309.



7.3.4 
 

7.  Consent Agenda (Jack Robb, Board Chair) 
(All Items for Possible Action) 

 
     7.3 Receipt of quarterly vendor reports for the period 

ending June 30, 2023:  

7.3.1 Segal – Estimate of IBNR as of 
June 30, 2023 

            7.3.2  Sierra Healthcare Options – 
Utilization and Large Case 
Management 

         7.3.3      WTW’s Individual Marketplace    
Enrollment and Performance 
Report 

7.3.4 Doctor on Demand Engagement 
Report through August 2023  

 



© 2022 Included Health, Inc. - Proprietary1 © 2022 Included Health, Inc. - Proprietary

Virtual Care Engagement 
Monthly Report

Reporting Period: 2023-06-01 to 2023-07-01

UMR - STATE OF NEVADA



Member Engagement

Total Covered Lives

2,448
Registrations 
Since Launch

Registration Rate 
Since Launch

Employee 
Covered Lives

444
Registrations 
Year to Date

Registration Rate 
Year to Date

3,459
Visits 

Since Launch

1,770
Unique Visitors 
Since Launch

2.0
Average Visits 

Per Visitor 
Since Launch

Engagement Rate 
Since Launch 

(Visitors/Lives)

1,753
Visits Year to Date

1,027
Unique Visitors 

Year to Date

1.7
Average Visits 

Per Visitor 
Year to Date

Engagement Rate 
Year to Date

(Visitors/Lives)

60
Registrations This Month

210
Unique Visitors This Month

252
Total Visits This month

Visits Last 12 Months

New Registrations (Last 12 Months) 

This section highlights how many members have engaged with our services, as measured by 
registrations and visits. Registration is a leading indicator of program health, as it opens the door to 
continuous engagement with members and supporting them when clinical needs arise. Monitoring 
monthly engagement is key to program success; changes in engagement can result from marketing 
initiatives or seasonality (e.g. cold and flu). 

New Member Registrations

Unique Visitors Total Visits

2



Member Engagement

Most Popular Day for Visits 
Lifetime to Date

Most Popular Time for Visits
Lifetime to Date

Medical & Behavioral Health Visits (Rolling 12 Months) 

3

Monday 10AM - Noon
*Most popular day and time metrics are adjusted to time zone local where the visit was initiated  

Member Demand by Visit Type Lifetime to Date

Therapy Visit
Psychiatry Visit

Scheduled Medical Visit
On-Demand Medical Visit



Member Access
This section highlights our impact on increasing members’ access to appropriate medical and 
behavioral health care, and their satisfaction with our services. We improve access to care by 
seeing members after hours (when brick & mortar providers are closed) and by making it 
easier to visit with a provider during business hours.

Without Included Health, where would you have gone?

Percent Response Lifetime to Date

Member Experience Metrics This Month Lifetime to Date

Average Member Rating 4.99 / 5 (N = 191) 4.96 / 5 (N = 2,541)

Average Wait Time for On-Demand Medical 
Appointments 4.79 min 15.93 min

 We help members 
avoid unnecessary 
in-person visits by 
treating their needs 
virtually. 

4

Visits by Age
Year to Date

Visits by Reported Gender
Year to Date

OtherFemale Male Percent Distribution



This section highlights the range of clinical conditions that we are treating through virtual care 
services. The program addresses a comprehensive range of both physical and behavioral health 
needs, and chronic and acute conditions. Examining the top needs of your population can 
inform more targeted clinical interventions and programs. 

Symptom
Visits 

This Month
Visits Lifetime to 

Date

Congestion / sinus problem 45 1,062

Cough 37 906

Fatigue / weakness 43 799

Headache 43 769

Sore throat 40 734

Difficulty sleeping 48 650

Nasal discharge 22 557

Fever 26 415

Difficulty / pain swallowing 27 402

Sputum / productive cough / phlegm 21 363

Member Reported Symptoms 

ICD-10 Diagnoses
Visits 

This Month
Visits Lifetime to 

Date

Other upper respiratory infections 42 768

Anxiety disorders 49 541

Mood disorders 41 383

Urinary tract infections 24 299

COVID-19 8 196

Administrative/social admission 19 191

Cough, unspecified 9 160

Inflammation; infection of eye (except that c.. 11 155

Other upper respiratory disease 6 146

Adjustment disorders 16 136

Member Conditions
Top 10 Diagnoses 

Top 10 Symptoms 

Member Clinical Needs

5



Our clinical team can provide a wide range of clinical services to help address members’ needs. 
Our team has a focus on prescribing and labs to ensure our efficacy meets or exceeds that of 
in-person care through connections with pharmacy benefits and top lab networks

277
Prescriptions 
This Month

70.0%
of visits resulted in a 

prescription order 
Lifetime to Date

68
Lab Orders 
This Month

3.7%
of visits resulted in a 

lab order
 Lifetime to Date

For any questions regarding the reporting, 
please feel free to reach out to your 
respective client success lead. Thank you. 

Clinical Service Delivery

Prescriptions and Testing Summary 

Top Prescriptions and Testing Orders

6

Top 
Prescriptions

Count This 
Month

Count 
Lifetime 
to Date

benzonatate 17 329

prednisone 8 246

amoxicillin/potassiu.. 12 182

albuterol 14 181

nitrofurantoin monoh.. 16 179

ipratropium nasal 10 162

fluticasone nasal 6 124

amoxicillin 8 113

methylprednisolone 3 108

nirmatrelvir/ritonavir 8 100

Top 
Labs

Count This 
Month

Count 
Lifetime 
to Date

Comprehensive 
Metabo.. 3 39

CBC+diff 4 37

Urinalysis, Complete.. 4 32

Lipid Panel 3 30

TSH with Reflex to F.. 2 28

Hemoglobin A1c 3 26

Urine Culture, Routine 1 23

Vitamin D 2 19

Chlamydia/GC, Urine 2 18

HIV-1/2 Ag/Ab, 4th G.. 1 12



7

Data Dictionary

Metric Definition

Behavioral 
Health Visit

Behavioral Health visits refer to scheduled appointments with our multidisciplinary team of 
therapists, psychologists, and psychiatrists. Our integrated Behavioral Health solution delivers 
highly-accessible, virtual-first therapy and psychiatry to members to address every member need 
from subclinical to clinical. Therapy visits are 25 or 50 minutes in length depending on the patient’s 
needs. Initial Psychiatry visits are 45 minutes in length and all follow up psychiatry visits are 15 
minutes in length.

Covered Lives Total count of member lives (employees and dependents) eligible for Included Health services.

Employee Lives Total count of employee lives eligible for Included Health services.

Engagement 
Rate

Total number of unique visitors as a percentage of eligible lives. 

Medical Visit Medical visits refer to on-demand and/or scheduled encounters with our multidisciplinary team of 
clinicians.

Urgent Care: Our Everyday & Urgent Care solution offers accessible video-first care for acute 
needs. Our multidisciplinary team of employed clinicians provide 24/7 care on demand or by 
appointment to improve access to care and deliver a better care experience. Providers are 
cross-trained in behavioral health, primary dermatology, and geriatric medicine, to treat a wide 
range of everyday & urgent care and behavioral health needs including cold, flu, UTIs, sinus 
infections, along with anxiety and depression

Virtual Primary Care - With Primary Care, we provide 24/7 care across the full continuum of member 
needs, including physical - acute, preventive and chronic - and behavioral for engaged members.

ICD-10 Code 
and Description

Describes the top international classification of diseases for diagnoses, symptoms, and procedures 
recorded by our clinicians as a result of the visit.

Member Rating Average visitor rating of 1-5 stars submitted upon visit completion. 

Patient 
Reported 
Symptoms

Describes the top symptoms selected by the patient during visit intake. A patient may select more than 
one symptom per visit.

Registration A member is considered "registered" when they accept the Included Health TOS, either in a digital session 
or phone call. Registration rate is the total number of individuals registered as a percentage of eligible 
lives.

Reported Age 
and Gender

Describes the patient’s age and gender category as provided by the member’s insurance carrier or 
reported by the patient. Note, these demographics describe the patient, not the visitor.

Visit A visit describes a member’s encounter with an Included Health provider. Visits can be classified as: 
Medical or Behavioral (Therapy, Psychiatry)

Visitors A member that initiates a visit with Included Health. Unique visitor counts is determined by the member 
that initiates the visit, not the patient seen by the provider. For example: A patient that initiates a visit for 
herself and a separate visit for her child is counted as one unique visitor.



© 2022 Included Health, Inc. - Proprietary1 © 2022 Included Health, Inc. - Proprietary

Virtual Care Engagement 
Monthly Report

Reporting Period: 2023-07-01 to 2023-08-01

UMR - STATE OF NEVADA



Member Engagement

Total Covered Lives

2,581
Registrations 
Since Launch

Registration Rate 
Since Launch

Employee 
Covered Lives

514
Registrations 
Year to Date

Registration Rate 
Year to Date

3,749
Visits 

Since Launch

1,877
Unique Visitors 
Since Launch

2.0
Average Visits 

Per Visitor 
Since Launch

Engagement Rate 
Since Launch 

(Visitors/Lives)

2,043
Visits Year to Date

1,162
Unique Visitors 

Year to Date

1.8
Average Visits 

Per Visitor 
Year to Date

Engagement Rate 
Year to Date

(Visitors/Lives)

68
Registrations This Month

242
Unique Visitors This Month

289
Total Visits This month

Visits Last 12 Months

New Registrations (Last 12 Months) 

This section highlights how many members have engaged with our services, as measured by 
registrations and visits. Registration is a leading indicator of program health, as it opens the door to 
continuous engagement with members and supporting them when clinical needs arise. Monitoring 
monthly engagement is key to program success; changes in engagement can result from marketing 
initiatives or seasonality (e.g. cold and flu). 

New Member Registrations

Unique Visitors Total Visits

2



Member Engagement

Most Popular Day for Visits 
Lifetime to Date

Most Popular Time for Visits
Lifetime to Date

Medical & Behavioral Health Visits (Rolling 12 Months) 

3

Monday 10AM - Noon
*Most popular day and time metrics are adjusted to time zone local where the visit was initiated  

Member Demand by Visit Type Lifetime to Date

Therapy Visit
Psychiatry Visit

Scheduled Medical Visit
On-Demand Medical Visit



Member Access
This section highlights our impact on increasing members’ access to appropriate medical and 
behavioral health care, and their satisfaction with our services. We improve access to care by 
seeing members after hours (when brick & mortar providers are closed) and by making it 
easier to visit with a provider during business hours.

Without Included Health, where would you have gone?

Percent Response Lifetime to Date

Member Experience Metrics This Month Lifetime to Date

Average Member Rating 4.87 / 5 (N = 199) 4.96 / 5 (N = 2,740)

Average Wait Time for On-Demand Medical 
Appointments 6.16 min 15.09 min

 We help members 
avoid unnecessary 
in-person visits by 
treating their needs 
virtually. 

4

Visits by Age
Year to Date

Visits by Reported Gender
Year to Date

OtherFemale Male Percent Distribution



This section highlights the range of clinical conditions that we are treating through virtual care 
services. The program addresses a comprehensive range of both physical and behavioral health 
needs, and chronic and acute conditions. Examining the top needs of your population can 
inform more targeted clinical interventions and programs. 

Symptom
Visits 

This Month
Visits Lifetime to 

Date

Congestion / sinus problem 52 1,114

Cough 45 951

Fatigue / weakness 51 850

Headache 46 815

Sore throat 42 776

Difficulty sleeping 49 699

Nasal discharge 17 574

Fever 34 449

Difficulty / pain swallowing 19 421

Loss of appetite 34 386

Member Reported Symptoms 

ICD-10 Diagnoses
Visits 

This Month
Visits Lifetime to 

Date

Other upper respiratory infections 45 813

Anxiety disorders 34 575

Mood disorders 32 415

Urinary tract infections 38 337

COVID-19 12 208

Administrative/social admission 13 204

Cough, unspecified 14 174

Inflammation; infection of eye (except that c.. 14 169

Other upper respiratory disease 6 152

Adjustment disorders 14 151

Member Conditions
Top 10 Diagnoses 

Top 10 Symptoms 

Member Clinical Needs

5



Our clinical team can provide a wide range of clinical services to help address members’ needs. 
Our team has a focus on prescribing and labs to ensure our efficacy meets or exceeds that of 
in-person care through connections with pharmacy benefits and top lab networks

301
Prescriptions 
This Month

70.0%
of visits resulted in a 

prescription order 
Lifetime to Date

81
Lab Orders 
This Month

3.9%
of visits resulted in a 

lab order
 Lifetime to Date

For any questions regarding the reporting, 
please feel free to reach out to your 
respective client success lead. Thank you. 

Clinical Service Delivery

Prescriptions and Testing Summary 

Top Prescriptions and Testing Orders

6

Top 
Prescriptions

Count This 
Month

Count 
Lifetime 
to Date

benzonatate 16 345

prednisone 14 260

nitrofurantoin monoh.. 26 205

amoxicillin/potassiu.. 12 194

albuterol 10 191

ipratropium nasal 10 172

fluticasone nasal 7 131

amoxicillin 3 116

methylprednisolone 5 113

nirmatrelvir/ritonavir 8 108

Top 
Labs

Count This 
Month

Count 
Lifetime 
to Date

Comprehensive 
Metabo..

6 45

CBC+diff 4 41

Urinalysis, Complete.. 8 40

Lipid Panel 5 35

TSH with Reflex to F.. 5 33

Hemoglobin A1c 2 28

Urine Culture, Routine 2 25

Chlamydia/GC, Urine 6 24

Vitamin D 1 20

HIV-1/2 Ag/Ab, 4th G.. 4 16



7

Data Dictionary

Metric Definition

Behavioral 
Health Visit

Behavioral Health visits refer to scheduled appointments with our multidisciplinary team of 
therapists, psychologists, and psychiatrists. Our integrated Behavioral Health solution delivers 
highly-accessible, virtual-first therapy and psychiatry to members to address every member need 
from subclinical to clinical. Therapy visits are 25 or 50 minutes in length depending on the patient’s 
needs. Initial Psychiatry visits are 45 minutes in length and all follow up psychiatry visits are 15 
minutes in length.

Covered Lives Total count of member lives (employees and dependents) eligible for Included Health services.

Employee Lives Total count of employee lives eligible for Included Health services.

Engagement 
Rate

Total number of unique visitors as a percentage of eligible lives. 

Medical Visit Medical visits refer to on-demand and/or scheduled encounters with our multidisciplinary team of 
clinicians.

Urgent Care: Our Everyday & Urgent Care solution offers accessible video-first care for acute 
needs. Our multidisciplinary team of employed clinicians provide 24/7 care on demand or by 
appointment to improve access to care and deliver a better care experience. Providers are 
cross-trained in behavioral health, primary dermatology, and geriatric medicine, to treat a wide 
range of everyday & urgent care and behavioral health needs including cold, flu, UTIs, sinus 
infections, along with anxiety and depression

Virtual Primary Care - With Primary Care, we provide 24/7 care across the full continuum of member 
needs, including physical - acute, preventive and chronic - and behavioral for engaged members.

ICD-10 Code 
and Description

Describes the top international classification of diseases for diagnoses, symptoms, and procedures 
recorded by our clinicians as a result of the visit.

Member Rating Average visitor rating of 1-5 stars submitted upon visit completion. 

Patient 
Reported 
Symptoms

Describes the top symptoms selected by the patient during visit intake. A patient may select more than 
one symptom per visit.

Registration A member is considered "registered" when they accept the Included Health TOS, either in a digital 
session or phone call. Registration rate is the total number of individuals registered as a percentage of 
eligible lives.

Reported Age 
and Gender

Describes the patient’s age and gender category as provided by the member’s insurance carrier or 
reported by the patient. Note, these demographics describe the patient, not the visitor.

Visit A visit describes a member’s encounter with an Included Health provider. Visits can be classified as: 
Medical or Behavioral (Therapy, Psychiatry)

Visitors A member that initiates a visit with Included Health. Unique visitor counts is determined by the member 
that initiates the visit, not the patient seen by the provider. For example: A patient that initiates a visit for 
herself and a separate visit for her child is counted as one unique visitor.



7.3.5 
 

7.  Consent Agenda (Jack Robb, Board Chair) 
(All Items for Possible Action) 

 
     7.3 Receipt of quarterly vendor reports for the period ending 

June 30, 2023:  
7.3.1 Segal – Estimate of IBNR as of June 30, 

2023 
               7.3.2  Sierra Healthcare Options – Utilization and 

Large Case Management 
           7.3.3        WTW’s Individual Marketplace    

Enrollment and Performance Report 
7.3.4 Doctor on Demand Engagement Report 

through August 2023  
7.3.5 Fiscal Year 2023 Other Post-Employment 

Benefits (OPEB) valuation prepared by 
Segal in conformance with the 
Governmental Accounting Standards 
Board (GASB) requirements 

 















































































































8. 
8. Executive Officer Report. (Celestena 

Glover, Interim Executive Officer) 
(Information/Discussion) 

 

  



 
 

AGENDA ITEM 

 Action Item 
  

X Information Only 

 

Date:       

  

September 28, 2023 

Item Number: VIII 

Title: Executive Officer Report   

Summary 

This report will provide the Board, participants, public, and other stakeholders information on PEBP 

activities and operations. 

Report 

 

Voluntary Benefits Update: 

PEBP received word from Nevada Division of Insurance (DOI) that they will review the issue of the 

incorrectly calculated rates for those enrolled in Long Term Disability benefit.  As a result, PEBP instructed 

Corestream through Tellus Health (formerly Lifeworks) that the plan to collect back premiums must be 

suspended pending the results of DOI’s review.  Corestream complied with that request and informed staff 

that no collection activity had occurred prior to this time.  The relevant documentation was provided to DOI 

by the contractor as of August 17, 2023. Although the DOI has not provided a final opinion on this issue, 

on September 12, 2023, PEBP was notified by Corestream that The Standard agreed to waive the $100k 

shortfall resulting from the incorrectly calculated rates and they would not be collecting back premium from 

the affected members. 

 

Customer Service Tools 

PEPB is happy to report that we have been able to coordinate with both UMR and VIA to have a 

representative available to provide in person assistance to our members starting September 2023.   

UMR 

If members have questions about claims, UMR’s Field Account Manager for PEBP will be available to 

PEBP members in Northern and Southern Nevada on a rotating basis at either the PEBP office or the UMR 



campus. Generally, the availability will be Wednesdays and Thursdays with one day for appointments and 

the other for walk-ins; however, this is subject to change based on utilization.  Members should contact 

UMR to schedule a meeting with the UMR representative. Member should contact UMR at (888) 763-8232 

or through the UMR chat function on the members individual UMR account:  

PEBP office in Carson City: 

3427 Goni Road, Suite 109 

Carson City, NV 89706 

 

UMR Campus in Las Vegas: 

2716 N Tenaya Way,  

Las Vegas, NV 89128  

 
 

VIA Benefits 

VIA benefits will have on-site assistance at the PEBP office in Carson City approximately every other 

month. Members can call for HRA Onsite Assistance Appointments at 1-844-266-1395.  This number is 

also available on our website under Plan Contacts.  Additionally, members can schedule a call through their 

Via Benefit website at https://my.viabenefits.com/pebp.  On-site in-person assistance will begin September 

26 and 27, 2023 with the first day reserved for appointments and the second day for walk-ins.  

 

Call Center - Phone Tree 

The phone tree selection system is designed to direct calls to the appropriate receiving department or 

vendor.  For example, if it is related to voluntary benefits the member is directed to select option 3.   

There have been public comments and complaints about members trying to call PEBP during normal 

business hours and members would be told to call back during normal business hours with the call 

disconnecting.  This prompted staff to conduct a thorough review of the phone tree system. 

The phone tree system and options were reviewed with no issues noted.  However, it was discovered that 

if members attempt to bypass the phone tree by pressing zero “0,” the caller will receive the request to call 

back and subsequent disconnection.  PEBP recognizes the importance of the phone tree and is working to 

change option “0” to redirect members back to the phone tree to select an appropriate option.  

Staffing 

Staffing at PEBP, as with other state agencies, continues to be a challenge.  Fortunately, PEBP has been 

able to fill several positions to include 2 positions in accounting, 3 internal promotions, and expect to fill 2 

MSU positions once we have the final approvals from the Division of Human Resource Management.   

Recruitments for other vacant positions is ongoing and PEBP will be reviewing applications as those 

recruitments close.  PEBP’s vacancy rate will be around 21% which includes the pending approval for the 

2 MSU positions.  

 

 

https://pebp.state.nv.us/plans/plan-contacts/
https://my.viabenefits.com/pebp


9. 
9. Discussion and possible direction from 

the Board to staff on potential program 
design changes for Plan Year 2025 
(July 1, 2024 to June 30, 2025) for 
which the Board requests additional 
information and costs to be presented at 
the November 16, 2023 meeting 
(Celestena Glover, Interim Executive 
Officer) (For Possible Action) 



 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM 
X Action Item 
  
 Information Only 

 
Date:       
  

September 28, 2023 

Item Number: IX 

Title: Plan Year 2025 Initiatives Report 

 
SUMMARY 
  
This report will provide the Board, participants, public, and other stakeholders information and 
recommendations for a deeper analysis on the potential plan benefits for Plan Year 2025.  
 
REPORT 
 
Excess Reserves 
 
Excess reserves are difficult to project as costs and plan experience throughout the plan year 
typically differ from actual results.  In addition, the PEBP board approved the utilization of 
excess reserves to fund certain benefit enhancements.  PEBP recently closed Fiscal Year 2023 
and as shown in the quarterly Budget Report, excess reserves were slowly being spent down.  As 
of the close of Fiscal Year 2023 and the beginning of Fiscal Year 2024 the excess reserve 
balance is now at $0.   
 
Plan Design Considerations 
 
There were several changes during Plan Year 2024 so in an effort to not overload members with 
more programs and more changes that may be difficult to understand and/or may not apply to 
many members PEBP staff believes it would be prudent to keep changes (if any) to a minimum 
for Plan Year 2025.  PEBP staff discussed with Segal’s team potential options for Plan Year 
2025 modifications and requested Segal’s team review the current plan design and present 
options for discussion and consideration with the PEBP Board.  Those options included: 
 
 Pharmacy Network enhancement to include Smart90 and Specialty Copay 
 Plan Alternatives to include a review of the viability of the EPO and HMO plans. 



 
PY25 Plan Benefit Design  
September 28, 2023 
Page 2 
 
Consumer Driven Health Plan  
 
The Internal Revenue Service (IRS) has recently updated the annual deductible and out of pocket 
maximums for health savings account (HSA) eligible plans in calendar year 2024.  The annual 
deductible will increase to $1,600 for self-only coverage and $3,200 for family coverage (up 
from $1,500 and $3,000 in 2023) while the annual out-of-pocket expenses are not to exceed 
$8,050 for self-only coverage or $16,100 for family coverage (up from $7,500 and $15,000 in 
2023).  In addition, the IRS also raised HSA contribution limits to $4,150 for individuals and 
$8,300 for families (up from $3,850 and $7,750 in 2023).  The catch-up contribution for those 
aged 55 and over remains at $1,000 above the HSA limit. 
 
PEBP will be required to increase the deductibles in order the continue to provide HSA benefits 
to those qualifying members enrolled in the CDHP.  
 
Plan Design Enhancements/Differential Cash (Excess Reserves) 
 
In the past the PEBP Board approved a number of enhanced benefits to be funded by differential 
cash (excess reserves).  As of the date of this report and as noted in the Budget Report, PEBP 
ended Fiscal Year 2023 with $120.7 million of cash on hand to balance forward to Fiscal Year 
2024.  The budget was approved with a balance forward amount of $144.8 million a difference 
of $24.1 million.  PEBP’s budget was legislatively approximately with $14.7 million in the 
excess reserves.  Those reserves have now been fully exhausted meaning any plan design 
enhancements the Board wishes to consider may affect the overall plan rates.   
 
PEBP staff will monitor revenue and expenditures closely to determine if this situation is likely 
to change during the year.    
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:   
PEBP recommends the Board approve the research of some or all of the above proposed PY25 
plan design options, as well as any others not listed in this report.    
 
 
 
 
 



© 2022 by The Segal Group, Inc.

Potential Plan Changes for Plan Year 2025 

September 28, 2023 PEBP Board Meeting

Nevada 
Public Employees’ Benefits Program



1

1. Changes for Plan Year 2024

2. Open Access Pharmacy

3. Specialty Copay

4. Medical Pharmacy Variable Coupon Program

5. EPO/HMO

Agenda



2

Changes for PY2024

Option Description Annual Cost/(Savings) Status

Real Appeal Weight Loss ($170,000) Implemented July 1, 2023

Hinge Health Virtual PT ($1,400,000) Implemented July 1, 2023

Doctor on Demand Virtual Behavioral Health $250,000 Not Approved by Board

Abortion Travel Travel Benefit $25,000 - $50,000 Implemented July 1, 2023

Medical Travel Travel Benefit and COE 
Network ($900,000 - $1,000,000) Implementation anticipated 

for January 1, 2024

Oncology Program Concierge Services and COE 
Network ($1,000,000 - $2,000,000)

RFP issued in August 2023 
with proposals due 
September 2023

Dental Increase ABL $750,000 Implemented July 1, 2023

One Time HRA Share Surplus with Members $9,300,000 Implemented July 1, 2023



3

Consideration: Open access approach for 30 and 90 day fills
Why?
 Express Advantage and Smart90 networks implemented for PY22

 Requires members to use narrow pharmacy network(s)

 May not provide comparable access to all members

 Provides enhanced discounts compared to open network 

 Members would have more local options

Next steps
 Compare access vs. cost/savings (for plan and members)

. 

Open Access Pharmacy 



4

Consideration: Eliminate specialty tier or implement a max copay

Why?
 Reduce costs for more vulnerable members since very few specialty 

medications have lower cost alternatives

 Current cost share provides incentive for SaveOnSP Rx participation, 
which results in $0 member copay and savings to the Plan from 
leveraging manufacturer coupons. However, not all specialty medications 
are eligible for the SaveOnSP Rx program.

 Current cost share provisions provide significant exposure to members 
with specialty medications

• Example: $10,000 medication = $3,000 member cost in the LDHP plan
• Member cost share is capped at annual OOP Maximum, but costs may be 

prohibitive for first few months of the Plan Year.

Specialty Copay

Benefit CDHP Low Deductible 
(LDHP) EPO HMO

Specialty 20% after 
deductible

30% after deductible 
(30 day mail only)

20% after deductible 
(30 day supply only)

20% after 
deductible 



5

Next steps
 Compare member impact vs. plan cost/savings

 Maintain current cost share for medications that are eligible for SaveOnSP Rx

Specialty Copay



6

Medical Pharmacy Coupon Program
Consideration: Implement coupon program for specialty drugs 
administered through the pharmacy benefit

Why?
 New option from UMR

 Leverages manufacturer coupons similar to ESI’s SaveOnSP Rx, but 
for drugs administered in an inpatient setting 

 SaveOnSP Rx applies only to outpatient medications

Next steps
 Review program details with UMR

 Evaluate member impact vs. plan savings

. 



7

EPO/HMO
Consideration: Review viability of EPO/HMO and consider 
alternatives

Why?
 HMO premium increases have been capped at 9.5% in previous years. 

Maximum rate increase for PY25 is 20% and Loss Ratio exceeds 120%

 EPO and HMO blended for rating purposes and EPO has benefited from 
lower HMO premiums

 HMO network and EPO network have significant provider overlap

 EPO and LDHP networks are the same and the difference in actuarial value 
is < 2%

 EPO is in-network only and many employees enroll in EPO without 
understanding the limited/restricted network access

 UMR negotiates special case agreements with OON providers



8

EPO/HMO
Review Viability of EPO/HMO and Consider Alternatives

Next Steps
 Develop specific options, which could include

• Sunset HMO and merge with EPO (all self-insured)
• Merge LDHP and EPO (and possibly HMO)

 Review cost impact and risk distribution

 Consider provider disruption and access to care

 Consider new plan option to maintain 3 plan structure?



9

Thank You



10. 
10.  Presentation and possible action on the 

status and approval of new PEBP 
contracts, contract amendments and 
solicitations (Michelle Weyland, Chief 
Financial Officer) 
(Information/Discussion) 

10.1 Contract Overview 
10.2 New Contracts 
10.3 Contract Amendments 

10.3.1  Express Scripts 
10.4 Contract Solicitations 
10.5 Status of Current Solicitations 

 



1 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM  
Action Item 

  
X Information Only 

 
Date:        September 28, 2023 

Item Number: X 

Title: Contract Status Report 

 
Summary 
 
This report addresses the status of PEBP contracts to include: 

1. Contract Overview 
2. New Contracts for approval 
3. Contract Amendments for approval 
4. Contract Solicitations for approval 
5. Status of Current Solicitations 

 
10.1 Contracts Overview 
 
Below is a listing of the active PEBP contracts as of August 31, 2023.   
 
  
 
 

 
 
Recommendation  
 
No action necessary 

Vendor Service Contract # Effective 
Date

Termination 
Date  Contract Max Current 

Expenditures Amount Remaining
Eide Bailly Financial Auditor 27703 7/11/2023 12/31/2026  $                386,500.00  $                              -    $                              -   

Health Plan of Nevada Inc Southern Nevada HMO 23802 7/1/2021 6/30/2025  $         192,093,848.00  $           89,162,885.50  $         102,930,962.50 
Diversified Dental Services Inc. Dental PPO 23810 7/1/2021 6/30/2026  $             1,601,613.00  $                689,385.32  $                912,227.68 

Lifeworks Benefits Management System 25935 5/10/2022 12/31/2026 6,145,600.00$             2,240,594.56$             3,905,005.44$             
Express Scripts, Inc. Pharmacy Benefit Manager 25582 5/10/2022 6/30/2026 332,109,496.00$          $           90,538,744.98 241,570,751.02$         

United Healthcare Insurance Group Basic Life Insurance 25607 7/1/2022 6/30/2026  $           12,824,248.00  $             4,331,494.47  $             8,492,753.53 
Brown & Brown of Massachusetts Health Plan Auditor 24030 4/13/2021 6/30/2027  $             1,581,662.00  $                445,569.00  $             1,136,093.00 

Segal Company, Inc. Consulting Services 25557 7/1/2022 6/30/2027  $             4,285,410.00  $                779,500.00  $             3,505,910.00 
HAT LTD, DBA Manpower Temporary Employment 23928 1/1/2023 12/31/2023  $                189,500.00  $                108,975.38  $                  80,524.62 

Capitol Reporters Court Reporting 27029 2/1/2023 6/30/2025  $                  31,932.00  $                    4,858.00  $                  27,074.00 
UMR, Inc. TPA and Other Services 25155 7/1/2022 6/30/2028  $           65,413,106.00  $             9,345,082.04  $           56,068,023.96 

PEBP Active Contracts Summary

STATE OF NEVADA 
PUBLIC EMPLOYEES’ BENEFITS PROGRAM 

3427 Goni Road, Suite 109, Carson City, NV 89706 
 Telephone 775-684-7000 | 702-486-3100 | 1-800-326-5496 

www.pebp.state.nv.us 
JOE LOMBARDO 

Governor 
JACK ROBB 

Board Chair 

CELESTENA GLOVER 
Interim Executive Officer 



2 
 

 
10.2 New Contracts 
 
NO NEW CONTRACTS 
 
Recommendation 
 
No action necessary 
 
10.3 Contract Amendment Ratifications 
 
10.3.1 Express Scripts – Amendment II – Incorporate rebate change agreement for various insulin 
products cost reductions per federal guidelines. 
 
Recommendation 
 
No action necessary. 
 
10.4 Contract Solicitation Ratifications 
 
PEBP does not currently have any contract solicitations for ratification. 
 
10.5 Status of Current Solicitations 
 
The chart below provides information on the status of PEBP’s in-progress solicitations: 
 

Service 
Anticipated/ 
Actual RFP 
release date 

Anticipated/ 
Actual NOI Winning Vendor 

Anticipated 
Board 

Approval 
Centers of Excellence – 

Travel Concierge 05/26/23 07/13/23  Nov. 2023 

Oncology Management 
Program 08/01/23 11/10/23  Jan. 2023 

 



11. 
 11.  Public Comment 



12. 
 12.  Adjournment 


	Meeting Notice and Agenda
	5.1 Applicant interview for position of the 
Executive Officer of PEBP
	7.1 Action Minutes July 27, 2023
	7.2.1 Budget Report
	7.3.1 Segal – Estimate of IBNR as of June 30, 2023
	7.3.2 Sierra Healthcare Options – 
Utilization and Large Case
Management
	7.3.3 WTW’s Individual Marketplace
Enrollment and Performance
Report
	7.3.4 Doctor on Demand Engagement
Report through August 2023
	7.3.5 FY 2023 (OPEB)
	8 Executive Officer Report
	9 Plan Year 2025 Initiatives Report
	10 Contract Status Report



